ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 7, 2014
1: 09 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Wes Keller, Chair
Representative Bob Lynn, Vice Chair
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Representative Lance Pruitt
Representative Max G uenberg
Representati ve Neal Foster
VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Charisse MIlett
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NE( S) :

Legislative Ethics Cormittee

Jani e Leask — Anchorage
Christena WIllians - Ketchikan
- CONFI RVATI ON(S)  ADVANCED

HOUSE BI LL NO. 214
"An Act relating to nental health patient rights, notifications,
and grievance procedures.”

- MOVED CSHB 214(JUD) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 282

"An Act relating to the rights and obligations of residentia
| andl ords and tenants; and relating to the taking of a permanent
fund dividend for rent and damages owed to a residential
| andl ord. "

- HEARD & HELD

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 375
"An Act relating to the crine of trespass.”

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -1- April 7, 2014



- MOVED CSHB 375(JUD) QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 60
“"An Act adopting and relating to the Uniform Real Property
Transfer on Death Act."

- HEARD & HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 214
SHORT TITLE: MENTAL HEALTH PATI ENT RI GHTS & GRI EVANCES
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) HI GA NS, TARR GATTI S

01/ 21/ 14 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 10/ 14

01/ 21/ 14 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

01/ 21/ 14 (H) HSS, JUD, FIN

02/ 18/ 14 (H HSS AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 18/ 14 (H Heard & Hel d

02/ 18/ 14 (H) M NUTE( HSS)

02/ 25/ 14 (H HSS AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 25/ 14 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 25/ 14 (H) M NUTE( HSS)

03/ 11/ 14 (H HSS AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 11/ 14 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 11/ 14 (H) M NUTE( HSS)

03/ 14/ 14 (H HSS AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 14/ 14 (H) Moved CSHB 214(HSS) Qut of Committee

03/ 14/ 14 (H M NUTE( HSS)

03/ 18/ 14 (H HSS RPT CS(HSS) NT 5DP 1NR

03/ 18/ 14 (H) DP: SEATON, REINBOLD, NAGEAK, TARR,
H GG NS

03/ 18/ 14 (H NR. KELLER

04/ 07/ 14 (H) JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

Bl LL: HB 282

SHORT TITLE: LANDLORD AND TENANT ACT
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) | SAACSON

01/ 29/ 14 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 29/ 14 (H) L&C, JUD

02/ 28/ 14 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

02/ 28/ 14 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 28/ 14 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 14/ 14 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

03/ 14/ 14 (H) Heard & Hel d

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 2- April 7, 2014



03/ 14/ 14 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 17/ 14 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

03/ 17/ 14 (H Moved CSHB 282(L&C) CQut of Conmittee

03/ 17/ 14 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 19/ 14 (H L&C RPT CS(L&C) 1DP BNR

03/ 19/ 14 (H DP:  JOSEPHSON

03/ 19/ 14 (H) NR; M LLETT, CHENAULT, HERRON,
REI NBOLD, SADDLER, OLSON

03/ 28/ 14 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

03/ 28/ 14 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 28/ 14 (H M NUTE( JUD)

04/ 04/ 14 (H) JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

04/ 04/ 14 (H) Heard & Hel d

04/ 04/ 14 (H M NUTE( JUD)

04/ 07/ 14 (H) JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

BILL: HB 375
SHORT TITLE:. CRI M NAL TRESPASS ON PRI VATE PROPERTY
SPONSOR(s) : FI NANCE

03/ 13/ 14 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 13/ 14 (H) JUD

04/ 02/ 14 (H) JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

04/ 02/ 14 (H) Heard & Hel d

04/ 02/ 14 (H) M NUTE( JUD)

04/ 07/ 14 (H) JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

BILL: HB 60
SHORT TITLE: UNI FORM REAL PROPERTY TRANSFERS ON DEATH
SPONSOR(s): GRUENBERG

01/ 16/ 13 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/11/13

01/ 16/ 13 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 13 (H) L&C, JUD

03/ 21/ 14 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

03/ 21/ 14 (H) -~ MEETI NG CANCELED - -

03/ 24/ 14 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

03/ 24/ 14 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 24/ 14 (H M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 28/ 14 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

03/ 28/ 14 (H) Moved CSHB 60(L&C) Qut of Committee
03/ 28/ 14 (H M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 31/ 14 (H) L&C RPT CS(L&C) NT 2DP 3NR

03/ 31/ 14 (H) DP: JOSEPHSON, OLSON

03/ 31/ 14 (H NR. CHENAULT, HERRON, JOHNSON
04/ 07/ 14 (H) JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 3- April 7, 2014



W TNESS REG STER

JANI E LEASK, Appoi nt ee

Legislative Ethics Cormittee

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke as appoi nt ee.

REPRESENTATI VE PETE H GG NS

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 214 as sponsor.

TOM STUDLER, St aff

to Representative Pete Higgins

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 214 on behal f of Representative
Hi ggi ns, sponsor.

FAI TH MYERS, Psychi atric Patient Advocate Vol unteer
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 214.

DORRANCE COLLINS, Psychiatric Patient Advocate Vol unteer
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 214.

CHRI STENA W LLI AMS, Appoi nt ee
Legislative Ethics Cormittee

Ket chi kan, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke as appoi nt ee.

J. FAI TH BURKHART, Executive Director

Al aska Mental Health Board

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Began testinmony on HB 214, but due to audio
probl enms, she said she would submit witten conments.

BRENDA HEW TT, Staff

to Senat or Doug | saacson

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 282 on behal f of Representative
| saacson, sponsor.

REPRESENTATI VE DOUG | SAACSON
Al aska State Legislature

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -4- April 7, 2014



Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 282 as sponsor.

DARRELL BREESE, St aff

to Representative Bill Stoltze

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 375 on behal f of Representative
Stoltze, sponsor

BURKE WALDRON, Captain

Al aska Wl dlife Troopers

Department of Public Safety

Pal mer, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding HB 375.

AL BARRETTE
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 375.

ANNE CARPENETI, Attorney

Crimnal Division

Al aska Departnent of Law (DQOL)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regarding HB 375.

THOVAS GALLANI'S, Professor

University of lowa Law Schoo

lowa City, |owa

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information regardi ng HB 60.

BENJAM N ORZESKE, Legi sl ative Counci

Uni form Acts on Real Property, Trusts, and Estates

Uni f orm Law Conmi ssi on

Chicago, Illinois

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information regardi ng HB 60.

BRANDON CI NTULA

Al aska Trust Conpany

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 60.

MARI E DARLI N

Al aska Conm ssion on Aging

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 60.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 5- April 7, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE DOUG | SAACSON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 282 as sponsor.

BRENDA HEW TT, Staff

to Senat or Doug | saacson

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 282 on behal f of Representative
| saacson, sponsor.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
1: 09: 24 PM

CHAIR WES KELLER called the House Judiciary Standing Conmittee
neeting to order at 1:09 p.m Representati ves LeDoux, Lynn,
Pruitt, Guenberg and Keller were present at the call to order
Representative Foster arrived as the neeting was in progress.

1:11:13 PM

CHAI R KELLER began a di scussion of HB 214 but said the conmmttee
needed to hold confirmation hearings because the joint session
is comng up and the conferees are on |ine.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI N&( S) :
Legi sl ative Ethics Conmttee

1:11: 40 PM

JANI E LEASK, Appointee, Legislative Ethics Commttee, said she
lives in Honer, Alaska, and was appointed as an alternate to the
Legislative Ethics Commttee |ast year. Tony Mallott resigned
and so she can be considered as a nenber, she added. She said
she has the highest regard for the individuals who volunteer to
participate by running for office as citizen |egislators. "
understand the intent of the Legislative Ethics Commttee; it
has been very interesting for nme to serve," she stated. She
added that she believes she has sonething to contribute and she
had enj oyed being on the commttee.

1:13:15 PM

CHAI R KELLER t hanked Ms. Leask and said he is glad she finds it
i nteresting.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 6- April 7, 2014



1: 13: 49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN nmade a notion to advance the confirmation of
Jani e Leask, appointee to the Legislative Ethics Commttee, to
the joint session for consideration. There being no objection

the confirmati on was advanced.

CHAIR KELLER attenpted to confirm Christena WIllians for the
Legislative Ethics Conmittee; however, she was apparently not on
l'ine.

HB 214- MENTAL HEALTH PATI ENT Rl GHTS & GRI EVANCES

1:15: 07 PM

CHAI R KELLER announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 214, "An Act relating to nental health patient
rights, notifications, and grievance procedures.”

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN noved to adopt the proposed comittee
substitute (CS) for HB 214, |abeled 28-LS0869\Y, M schel
4/ 4/ 14, as the working docunent. There being no objection,
Version Y was before the comm ttee.

1:15: 44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PETE HIGA NS, Alaska State Legislature, said HB
214 is a patients' rights bill for the nentally ill. "W want
to give them the rights that everybody else basically should
have when they go into a facility," he explained. "You re going
hear words |ike [indecipherable] and grievances and procedures
and that's what facilities have now already, and they do have
t hat . And we're not asking them to create anything nore or
anything | ess beyond that point, but what we are asking themto
do is to forward those grievances onto the adm nistration so we
can take a look at them and nake sure they're doing the job."
He said he has worked this bill through and it has been heard
frequently in another commttee, and "we've done a great job on
basically trying to address everyone's needs and nmaking sure
we're not doing undue burden on other facilities that may not
participate in overnight stays for patients.” He said the bil
basi cally breaks down the grievances into three categories.

1:17: 22 PM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -7- April 7, 2014



REPRESENTATIVE HIGA NS said the first category includes snall
grievances "that don't really affect the state.” He gave the
exanple of "my peas are too cold and ny cocoa's too hot," and
ot her such grievances that the facility can take care of fairly
easily. But the grievances he wants to hear about deal with the

patient's rights, he said, |like being denied a patient advocate
or tel ephone access. Such grievances will be forwarded to the
adm ni stration, he said. The third category, he explained,
includes crimnal grievances, and they need to be forwarded to
the adm nistration. "W don't want any of that hidden," he
added. This is a bill of transparency; this is letting the

state know that the facilities are doing the right thing, he
stated. He said the facilities are doing the right thing. Sone
facilities do not support HB 214, he noted, because they do not
like oversight, and that is a red flag. He is in the health
profession, and when he first started taking Medicaid, people
told himthat he would not |ike the audits. But he said he had
no problem with audits since he was not doing anything wong.
He added that he is conputerized, so audits are easy, and they
help him know where he is doing sonething wong so he can do
better. This bill is about basic patient rights and there is
pretty good support, he said.

1:19: 13 PM

TOM STUDLER, Staff, to Representative Pete Higgins, Al aska State
Legislature, directed the conmttee's attention to the sectional
analysis of HB 214. Section 1 adds nental health grievance
appeals to the jurisdiction of the Ofice of Admnistrative
Hearings; Section 2 requires the Ofice of Admnistrative
Hearings to maintain confidentiality of these records and their
gri evance appeals; Section 3 anends AS 47.30.660 by defining and
[imting the powers and the duties of the departnent on what it
can delegate; and Section 4 adds to the list of rights of a
person undergoing nental health evaluation or treatnent,
i ncluding involuntary comm tnents.

1: 19: 59 PM

MR. STUDLER said the additional rights include the right to file
a grievance; the right to have a designated representative of
their choosing to act as their advocate and to assist in the
filing of a grievance; the right to natural support systens,
including famly, friends, and help networks after being in a
| ocked facility for over three days; and the right to maintain
confidentiality of their records. He said Section 5 establishes
a grievance procedure including a call center, departnental

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 8- April 7, 2014



review, and appeal. It also establishes three categories of
grievances and defines grievance, grievant, and unit, he
expl ai ned. Section 6 requires the Departnent of Health and
Social Services (DHSS) to provide a standardized notice of
patients' rights, assistance, and grievance procedures. He said
Section 7 of HB 214 requires a transition period.

1: 20: 57 PM

MR. STUDLER said this bill has been nuch belabored to nake
changes for patients' rights and to neet the needs of DHSS. He
expressed his belief that this bill represents a consensus. He
expl ai ned how the CS changes the bill. Section 3 was changed

after discussions wth the Departnent of Law and DHSS so that
DHSS can nmmintain what it needs to do and to delegate those
powers necessary to facilitate a good nental health program in
the state. Section 4 was just renunbered for the CS, he stated,
and the definition of "unit" was added to Section 5. This was
for the benefit of individuals in comunity health centers or in
centers that do not perform evaluations or have people
commi tted. "It takes the local community health centers out of
the equation; they're no longer required to participate in this
program " he expl ai ned.

1: 23: 46 PM

MR. STUDLER said Section 7 anends the uncodified |aw by adding
that the DHSS shall inplenent these changes as soon as feasible.
He then noted that he failed to explain a change with the 24-
hour call center, which was renoved in an earlier version of the
bill and will reduce the fiscal note. Al so, defining the term
"unit" will further reduce the fiscal note, he said. He added
that he is hoping to hear from DHSS soon regardi ng the note.

CHAI R KELLER cal l ed for public testinony.
The committee took an at-ease from1:25 p.m to 1:26 p. m
1:26:40 PM

FAI TH MYERS, Psychiatric Patient Advocate Volunteer, said she
recei ved psychiatric treatnment in 2002 from the state-run Al aska
Psychiatric Institute, the Providence psychiatric energency
room and Anchorage Community Mental Health Services. She
stated that she had reasons to file conplaints that included
denial of service, physical assault, getting a black eye by
staff, and denial of basic rights. She explained that in all

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 9- April 7, 2014



cases she never received witten copies of grievance and appea
pr ocedur es. She could not file an appeal and did not get a
witten answer in two cases.

1:28:12 PM
M5. MYERS said the nentally ill cone in all shapes and sizes.
As a group they are mstreated [indiscernible]. She urged the

passage of HB 214 so that psychiatric patients get nore
equitable and fair patient rights.

CHAIR KELLER thanked her for her volunteer work and her
t esti nony.

1:29: 21 PM

DORRANCE CCOLLINS, Psychiatric Patient Advocate Volunteer, stated
that he supports HB 214, giving psychiatric patients an absol ute
right to file a grievance and to appeal. It wll force
psychiatric institutions to inprove patient care, he added.
[ 1 naudi bl e] As of now, psychiatric institutions hold too rmnuch
power in a patient's grievance and appeal process. The DHSS
[ supports] the Alaska Psychiatric Institute where 97 percent of
its patients arrive involuntarily, and DHSS clains that only 15
patients wanted to file a grievance |last year and even |ess

could file an appeal to resolution, he said. The hospital
treats about 4,000 patients per year, and several thousand are
involuntarily [comm tted]. Provi dence Hospital testified to the

HESS Conmittee that only 10 patients wanted to file a grievance
| ast year, he stated. [Inaudi bl e]

1: 30: 39 PM

CHAI R KELLER said the commttee is having difficulty hearing M.
Collins, and he asked for witten comments.

MR. COLLINS said the federal governnent and the Joint Conm ssion
for accreditation of hospitals have rules that help protect the
patient and the grievance process, "but there is absolutely no
protection for the psychiatric patients and the infornm
conplaint process.” He requested that patients get the right to
file a grievance at the time of their choosing, and "foll ow ng
the initial evaluation, psychiatric patient rights 4, 5 7, and
9 can only be tenporarily renoved if the professional in charge
determ nes that granting those patients those rights wll pose a
threat to the safety and wellbeing of the patient or others.”
He said HB 214 should state that the patient advocate shall have

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -10- April 7, 2014



nmental health advocacy training and that there wll be an
advocat e avail abl e 24 hours a day, seven days a week.

1: 31: 35 PM

MR, COLLINS said patients are |ocked up on Sunday, not just
during the week. They are |ocked up at m dnight, and they need
an advocate available all of the tinme, he explained. He said HB

214 should add an urgent grievance [process]. Patients are
often in facilities for less than 14 days, and they could be
denied their rights the entire tine. He said there should be

some kind of phone line where a patient can call a help center.

He suggested adding clarity to when a patient grievance starts—
"you tell when it ends, but when does the patient grievance
start—when it's dropped in the box or when they call it in?" It

should be in the bill, he opined. Closing the |oopholes in HB
214 wll determne if patients will actually be able to file a
grievance in a fair way, he concl uded.

1: 33: 43 PM

CHAIR KELLER briefly set aside HB 214 in order to hold a
confirmation hearing.

CONFI RMATI ON HEARI N&( S) :
Legi sl ative Ethics Conmttee

1: 35: 10 PM

CHRI STENA W LLI AMS, Appointee, Legislative Ethics Commttee,
said she believes in public service. She is willing to serve
She added that she is capable and it is straight forward.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN nmade a notion to advance the confirmation of
Christena WIIianmns, appointee to the Legislative Ethics
Conmittee, to the joint session for consideration. There being
no objection, the confirmati on was advanced.

HB 214- MENTAL HEALTH PATI ENT RI GHTS & GRI EVANCES

1: 36: 44 PM

CHAI R KELLER announced that the conmittee will return to public
testinmony for HB 214.

J. FAITH BURKHART, Executive Director, Alaska Mental Health
Board, spoke of the changes nade by the sponsor for HB 214

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -11- April 7, 2014



particularly [the change] ensuring that behavioral heal t h
centers [inaudible].

The committee took an at-ease from1:38 p.m to 1:43 p. m

1:43:55 PM

M5. BURKHART said she will submt her comments in witing.

The commttee took an at-ease from1:44 p.m to 1:45 p. m

1:45: 25 PM

CHAI R KELLER ended public testinony [audio difficulties].
REPRESENTATIVE LYNN noved to report the CS (Committee
Substitute) to HB 214, |abeled 28-LS0869\Y, M schel, 4/4/14, out
of comittee Wi th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB
214(JUD) was reported out of the House Judiciary Standing

Committee.

HB 282- LANDLORD AND TENANT ACT

1: 46: 40 PM

CHAI R KELLER announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 282, "An Act relating to the rights and
obligations of residential landlords and tenants; and relating
to the taking of a permanent fund dividend for rent and damages
owed to a residential landlord.™

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noved to adopt the |atest version of HB 282.
Hearing no objection, CSHB 282(L&C) was before the commttee.

1: 48: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOUG | SAACSON, Al aska State Legislature, thanked
the nmenbers who worked with him on HB 282. There are recent
changes, he not ed.

BRENDA HEW TT, Staff to Senator Doug |saacson, Alaska State
Legi slature, said she has spoken with the nenbers and believes
that there will be a conceptual anmendnent to renove Section 14,
which deals with donestic violence and an early departure [from
a rental unit]. The issue will be addressed in the new Uniform
Residential Landlord Tenant Act, "and so they'd be wlling to

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -12- April 7, 2014



wait a couple years for that to be finished and then bring that
back as a separate item" she said.

CHAI R KELLER said that sounds good; it was a sticking point so
"that will nmake it a |ot easier.”

M5. HEWTT said if Section 14 is deleted, "it also neans we nmay
be able to delete [AS 34.03.330(b)(9)]," which is on page 12 and
13, because it will be unnecessary.

1: 49: 37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked if both of those will be part of
a single anendnent and if there is anything else that would go
into that anendnent.

CHAIR KELLER asked if this was a witten anmendnent that
Representative | saacson gave the conmittee or if it was new.

1: 50: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON answered that the only anmendnents
[distributed to the commttee] he is asking to retain are
Amendnents 3 and 5. He said he will offer two nore amendnents;
one would delete Section 14 and [AS 34.03.330(b)(9)], as noted
by Ms. Hewitt. Additionally, "it has been given to us that we
should retain the word "unifornm as |long as possible, and so the

very first part of this bill, page 1, line 6, through page 4,
line 28, would actually be deleted." He said, "W would be
deleting the deletion of "uniform in order to retain '"uniforn
as there is value in the court process until the powers that
govern the wuniform tenant ... decree that we're no |onger
uniform?"

1:51: 25 PM

CHAI R KELLER said he will set the bill aside and try to get back
to it later today. The conmittee needs a list of anmendnents and
copi es for each nenber, he stated.

CHAI R KELLER announced that HB 282 was set aside. [The bill was
considered later in the sanme hearing.]

HB 375- CRI M NAL TRESPASS ON PRI VATE PROPERTY

1:52: 27 PM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -13- April 7, 2014



CHAI R KELLER announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BI LL NO. 375, "An Act relating to the crinme of trespass.”

1:52: 55 PM

DARRELL BREESE, Staff, to Representative Bill Stoltze, Al aska
State Legislature, said [HB 375] repeals two sections in the
definition of crimnal trespass in statute that require specific
| anguage and a specific manner in which individuals nust post
"no trespassing” signs on their property. He stated that there
have been two recent conflicts in the Matanuska-Susitna Valley,
and one involved trapping on private property and the other

i nvol ved the shooting of a pet turkey. 1In both cases there were
"no trespassing"” signs posted, he noted, but the signs were not
posted as described in statute. By repealing the definitions,

the burden shifts from a big specific set of guidelines for
posting signs to a narrow definition, making it sinpler for
property owners to declare no trespassi ng when they w sh.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said she had a question for Anne Carpeneti
[ Al aska Departnment of Law] about the pet turkey situation.

CHAIR KELLER said Captain Burke Wildron [from the Al aska
Wl dlife Troopers] is here to answer questions.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if there was a violation of |aw
[when the turkey was shot] that the troopers decided not to
prosecut e. "When you drive up on sonebody's driveway and shoot
something on their lawn," it would seem to violate sonething,
she st at ed.

1: 55: 25 PM

BURKE WALDRON, Captain, Alaska WIldlife Troopers, Departnent of
Public Safety, said his office provided a witten response to

the conmttee. There was no crimnal trespass conmtted wth
the turkey incident because the turkey was shot on the person's
driveway on the edge of the roadway, "and there were sone

significant issues in establishing whether the turkey was a
feral gane bird or a donestic pet,"” which nay pertain to either
a hunting violation or crimnal mschief, he offered. The
trooper [at the scene] exercised discretion, he said, and
advi sed both parties of potential civil renedies.

1: 56: 25 PM

CHAI R KELLER said there will be public testinony.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -14- April 7, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he is slightly confused by the
email from the troopers. He said that particular incident may
not be a good exanple of anything because no |aw was broken.
The question is about repealing subsections (b) and (c) in the
crimnal trespass law, and that will require anyone who goes for
a walk in woods to do a title search of every place they go.
That may be easy to do in New York Cty, he surmsed, but it
will be difficult in some areas of Al aska. He said that he
imagines it will be hard to determne if soneone is trespassing,
"and | think the purpose of this law that is on the books is to
put the average person on notice that they are on sonebody
else's land, and | don't see how the average person is going to
know that unless there is at |east sonething posted.”

1:59: 10 PM

MR. BREESE said Representative Guenberg is partially correct.
There is inplied consent to use a trail <crossing soneone's
property, just as there is inplied consent for soneone accessing
a driving, roadway, or river that crosses a property. "So for
that intent and purposes, | think, you're not |ooking at the

opportunity to prosecute in those instances if you're just
nmerely hiking across and wal king across soneone's property. I
don't know that it elevates to the standards that are set forth
in the descriptions of first degree and second degree crinm na
trespass,” he said. He noted that the bill is just renoving the
requi renent for a clear sign at every point of access.

2:00: 27 PM

MR. BREESE stated that in both incidences there were [no] "no
trespassing" signs posted, so according to current statute,
there was no |aw broken. The law is flawed because there is no
potential for trespassing if soneone does not post a sign as
specifically spelled out in statute, at every access point, that
is 144 square inches and contains the nane and address of the
property owner and what is prohibited. The signs mnust be in
exactly the manner specified in statute, and that is too nuch of
a burden to place on | andowners, he opi ned.

MR. BREESE said, "W're not saying you don't have to put a sign
up, we're just saying that we're going to take out the specifics
of the very specific |anguage that describes how signs nust be
posted. " What is required in statute is a bit of a burden to
pl ace on soneone to have at every access point, he opined.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 15- April 7, 2014



2:01:45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said, "I see where you're going."
The [signage] | anguage is really detailed, and sonebody
obviously wanted to be sure that the sign was readable, "but I
can see that a person who owns a honmestead or sonething out in
the mddle of nowhere wouldn't know what's in this obscure |aw
and wouldn't do it." Maybe some new |anguage can require
"reasonable notice," he offered. It can give the | andowner the
ability to put "sonething up somewhere that would provide sone
notice," he said, and it could be a general statenment to post a
si gn. That would make it easy for the |andowner, while
provi ding protection for the person who is crossing the property
w t hout becom ng crimnals, he stated.

2:03: 18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked about |anguage that would create a
different standard for hikers than for trappers or hunters. | f
a person is hunting, or doing sonething substantive I|ike that,
the person should know whether or not it is private property.
But for those just wondering in the woods, on a trail or not, it
seens quite a burden to carry around maps.

2:04: 33 PM

CHAIR KELLER noted that he was initially wuneasy wth the
| anguage in HB 375, but he was satisfied because it deals wth
Al aska, which is so unique because of the large land area and
the difficulty knowing where there is private land. The answer
is to get a very specific sign there that is so detailed and so
crazy that it obviously does not do any good. Then he read what
was not deleted from the law, and that is [subsection] (a),
which talks about land that is not open to the public. "And |
think that's sufficiently broad that it would allow for signs

so if | had a piece of property and | didn't want it open to the
public and | posted it, | would like to think that the rationa

trooper that cane along would take that as land that is not open
to the public.”

2:06: 02 PM

MR. BREESE expressed his belief that the conmttee needs to | ook
at the definitions for crimnal trespass in the first and second
degree, AS 11.46.320 and AS 11.46.330. Crimnal trespass in the
first degree requires the intent to commt a crinme, and crim nal
trespass in the second degree requires a person to enter or

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -16- April 7, 2014



remain unlawful ly. “I think when you get at the point of
sonmeone just wal king across a property and you don't want them
there and you say 'hey, it's ny property, can you |eave,' and
the person then refuses to leave, | think that elevates it to
the charge of second degree. | think until that point, we're
automatically elevating things to the point where it's a second
degree charge. | think—y opinion is—a judge would evaluate
that and say, you know, if you asked the person to | eave and the
person didn't |eave and remained on the property, then the
person is then wllfully breaking the law and is conmmtting
trespass at that point." He added that attorneys may be able to
address this issue.

2:07:18 PM
CHAI R KELLER suggest ed taking testinony.

AL BARRETTE, said he opposed HB 375 and he is hearing people
tal k about what is rational and reasonable, which are arbitrary
termns. Law is black and white, he stated. There is no cell
phone coverage in the Interior from 10 mles north of Fairbanks,
and GPS devices tell you where you are but not land status, he
added. He said there are RS4277 right-of-ways that are not
surveyed, so the location of the easenents are unknown, and
there are waterways with many recreational sites along different
rivers. He stated that he is pro-property rights, and if he

does not want soneone on his property he will put up mninmm
posting so others will know. It is easy for those who live in a
muni ci pality or a borough to find out property boundaries, but
it is difficult elsewhere. There are new Native l|lands on the
books and that information will not yet be on any public maps

he added. He urged the conmttee to nake a clear anmendnent
without relying on the rationality of people. Reasonabl e

si gnage woul d be appropriate, he stated.
2:10: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he appreciates what M. Barrette
said. He noted that he does not hike or hunt nuch, but he |ikes
to be out and many peopl e do. He does not want to crimnalize
people for fishing, hiking, or canping, as long as they are not
doi ng any harm

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked about soneone hiking on private

property that is not posted, and if the Departnent of Law would
view that as a prosecutable offense if HB 375 were passed.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -17- April 7, 2014



ANNE CARPENETI, Attorney, Crimnal D vision, Al aska Departnent
of Law (DCOL), said that would technically be a violation, but
"we woul d exercise our discretion under the circunstances."”

2:12: 19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if the person would be violating the
law of crimnal trespass, and then "it would totally be up to
you" on whether to prosecute.

M5. CARPENETI said yes.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said there are those who want to be
able to cross land and canp, fish, or hunt, for exanple. There
is the private owner who wants to preserve |land and not have
everybody run around on it. He asked if M. Carpeneti had any
suggesti ons. Subsection (c) looks very technical, and sonebody
could say he or she did not trespass because the sign was only
11 by 11 inches instead of the required 12 by 12 inches.

2:13:39 PM

M5. CARPENETI said the DOL does not have a position on this
bill, but she noted that the other body anended a simlar bill
to repeal subsection (c) and |eave subsection (b) in place.
That would require an owner to either personally notify the
hi ker, for exanple, or to post notice in a reasonably
conspi cuous manner under the circunstances, she explained. That
would leave it to be a question of fact whether the posting was
reasonably conspi cuous and not have the specific requirenents at
every entrance. She noted that that was the issue with the
illegal trappers as one entrance was not post ed.

CHAI R KELLER said he considered that idea, but as he | ooked at

subsection (a), "it looked like it is nobstly covered, and it
| ooks like (b) beconmes, at |east sonewhat, redundant. It just
seened like so nmany words, and so that's when | went over the

edge and thought this isn't a bad bill after all."
2:15: 33 PM

MS. CARPENETI said subsection (a)(1l) is one of the three ways a
person can enter or remain on property unlawfully, "and that is
enter on prem ses which are not open to public, but it doesn't
require any notice that it's open to the public or not." She
said that is why (b) would not be redundant to (a)(1).

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 18- April 7, 2014



CHAIR KELLER said that the fact that there is a notice would
inply that it is not open to the public. It | eaves the option
for the | andowner to post a sign, and then it would not be open
to the public, he added.

M5. CARPENETI said he is correct that a person could put up a
sign, but (a)(l1l) defines "enter or remain unlawfully", which is
tal king about entering or remaining unlawfully on property that
is not open to the public but not necessarily posted in any way.

2:16: 44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG added that he thinks (b) is very
hel pful, because notice could be personally communicated, and
then a sign is wunnecessary. Also, including (b) gives sone
direction and will make sure that, if possible, people do put up
some kind of a little sign.

MR. BREESE said that (a)(l) was nmentioned, but (a)(2) needs to
be | ooked at as well if it is to remain in statute. He stated
that (a) defines "enters or remains unlawfully", and it says:
fails to leave the prem ses of a propelled vehicle or property
that is open to the public after lawfully being directed to do
so. Therefore, if a person can access property w thout a fence
or sonething to stop the person, "it seenms to be publically
open," he stated. Unl ess soneone is told to leave ... "I think
it's covered in both (a)(1l) and (a)(2).

2:18:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said that (a)(l) gets at the question
of whether soneone is |lawfully directed to |eave, and if sonmeone
tells a person to leave, that is one thing. It also covers a
situation where a person did not get any personal direction, but
the property is not open to the public, and (b) describes what
is neant by being open to the public. Even if it is not fenced,
a person can be told in advance [not to enter the property], or
if there is a sign, a person mght not be directed to |eave
after being on the property, but it shows that it is not open to
the public. He suggested leaving (b) in and just repealing (c).

2:19:49 PM
CHAI R KELLER cl osed public testinony.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked if the sponsor would accept an
amendnment to retain subsection (b).

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -19- April 7, 2014



MR. BREESE said, "If that's the will of the commttee."”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to offer Conceptual Anendnment 1
as follows: AS 11.46.350(c) is repeal ed.

2:20:46 PM

CHAI R KELLER objected and said, "I think that (a) covers it. It
is very general and it's very broad. | understand that, but
that's the nature of our land in Al aska. It is very difficult
to know where you're at and what's going on. So I think it's

sufficient."

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said she is unconfortable with it the way
HB 375 reads now, because it nakes a crimnal out of soneone who
is just trying to take a hike. She realizes that M. Carpeneti
said hopefully DOL would use its discretion and there would not
be too many prosecutions, but she is still wunconfortable. She
said she feels better wwth Representative G uenberg' s anmendnent.

CHAI R KELLER renoved his objection [to Conceptual Amendnent 1]
and said he would let the sponsor fix it. There being no
further objections, Conceptual Anmendnment 1 was adopt ed.

2:22:55 PM

CHAI R KELLER cl arified the anmendnent.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d that [subsection](c) is repeal ed.
2:23: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noved to report HB 375, as anended, out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB 375(JUD) passed
out of the House Judiciary Standing Conmttee.

HB 60- UNI FORM REAL PROPERTY TRANSFERS ON DEATH

2:23: 39 PM
CHAI R KELLER announced that the next order of business would be

HOUSE BILL NO. 60. "An Act adopting and relating to the Uniform
Real Property Transfer on Death Act."

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 20- April 7, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he is one of the sponsors of HB
60, and he has a commttee substitute.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt the proposed comittee
substitute (CS) for HB 60, |abeled 28-LS0265\Y, Bannister,
4/ 6/ 14, as the worki ng docunent.

2:25:09 PM
CHAI R KELLER obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said there are two people from out of
state on the phone line. One, Thomas @Gllanis, is the reporter
for the uniformact and is a |aw professor at the University of
lowa Law School . The reporter is the person who puts the
[uniforn] act together, he expl ai ned.

2:26:17 PM

THOVAS GALLANI'S, Professor, University of lowa Law School, said
he was the reporter for the Uniform Property Transfer on Death
Act . He said he does not have prepared remarks; however, he
fully associates hinself with the witten testinony, which was
submtted on March 21 to the Labor and Commerce Conmittee by Ben
Orzeske of the Uniform Law Conm ssion. He was told that the
witten testinony has been nade available to the Judiciary
Comm ttee, and he woul d be happy to answer any questi ons.

2:27:06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said nobody on this committee sits on
the Labor and Commerce Conmittee, and he asked if M. @Gllanis
could briefly describe the problem that the uniform act
addresses and how it addresses it, then the conmttee wll know
what he has done and why HB 60 is inportant.

MR. GALLANI S said that over that |ast few decades there has been
growh in the "non-probate revolution,” which is the ability of
people to easily and thriftily transfer their property to naned
beneficiaries outside of the probate process. The non- probate
revolution has historically focused on personal property. For
exanpl e, bank accounts now have a pay-on-death feature, and
there are securities registered in transfer-on-death (TOD) form
Those are non-probate transfers, he stated. Citizens across the
country routinely take advantage of this trend to pass noney and
personal property to a nanmed beneficiary outside of probate.
The Uniform Real Property Transfer on Death Act would allow

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -21- April 7, 2014



Al aska residents to simlarly transfer real property to a naned

beneficiary at the time of the owner's death. This idea of a
transfer-on-death deed has been around for sone time, he said
and M ssouri, in 1989, becane the first state to allow such
deeds.

2:29:16 PM

MR. GALLANIS said five states allowed it by 2002, and the
Uni form Law Conmi ssion then began to study the issue. The Rea
Property Transfer on Death Act was conpleted by the comm ssion
in 2009, and 23 states now have the wuniform act or simlar
| egi sl ati on.

2:30: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if the latest state to pass
legislation is South Dakota, and that three other states,
i ncludi ng Al aska, are considering the issue.

MR. GALLANIS said that the two states recently considering the
| egi sl ati on, Washi ngton and West Virginia, have enacted it. In
response to Representative G uenberg, he explained the process
in that a person owning property would execute a deed, and the
deed would conply with all of the standard requirenents for a
legally reportable deed, but the deed would name a beneficiary
who woul d not have any interest in the property until the owner
died. The deed will operate analogously to a wll or a pay-on-
death bank account. The deed, in effect, lies dornmant while the
owner is alive, but it operates efficiently and outside of
probate at the owner's death to transfer the property to the
beneficiary.

2:32: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that page 3 [of the bill] says
that the deed nust state that it occurs at the person's death,
and it identifies the person specifically. He asked, "What do
you do with the deed and how does it operate?"

MR. GALLANIS said the deed is recorded, but unlike a standard
inter-vivos deed, which operates to transfer ownership during
the owner's lifetime, this transfer operates at death.

2:33: 10 PM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -22- April 7, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked if a person can revoke or
renounce the deed.

MR. GALLANIS said absolutely. These transfer-on-death deeds,
i ke pay-on-death designations for a bank account, have the two
principle features of wlls: they are both fully revocable
during the owner's life and they are anbul atory. The uniform
act lays out nultiple ways in which the deed can be revoked, and
one way is to record a subsequent deed, which will revoke the
prior deed, and another way is to file an instrument of
revocati on. If the owner sells the property to another person

t hat revokes the transfer-on-death deed.

2:35: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked about a non-recorded wll that
will not be effective.

MR. GALLANIS said, "W very nuch want information about the
property to be in the chain of title, and therefore sinply
executing a wll that sends 123 Main Street to a different
beneficiary does not operate to revoke the transfer-on-death
deed. "

2: 35: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the key is that it nust be
recorded, so anyone can |ook quickly and see if the deed is
still wvalid.

MR, GALLANI S agreed. He added that during the drafting of the
uniform act, there was significant help fromthe estate planning
and real property sections of the bar and froma title insurance
and banking representative. "They really helped us think
through all of the issues to nmake sure that there would not be
[i ndeci pherable] on title," he said.

CHAI R KELLER said that the conmttee is not going to nove the
bill today, and it will be set aside at 2:45.

MR. CGALLANIS responded to a question and said that in the
uniform act there is both a suggested form for the transfer-on-
death deed and a suggested form for the instrument of

revocati on. He noted that he has not |ooked at the Al aska
version of the bill to know what fornms are incl uded.
2:37: 50 PM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -23- April 7, 2014



CHAIR KELLER said both fornms are in the |atest version of the
bill. He asked what happens when soneone is acting on behalf of
an owner and what conplications are there when soneone has the
power of attorney.

2:39:15 PM

BENJAM N ORZESKE, Legislative Council, Uniform Acts on Rea
Property, Trusts, and Estates, Uniform Law Comm ssion, said the
act requires the owners of the property to act personally, and
t hey nmust have the capacity to act for thensel ves. | f a person
does not have the capacity to execute a will, that person cannot
execute a transfer-on-death deed, he explained, and the deed
must be recorded in public lands records before the owner's
deat h, he added. Unl ess a power-of-attorney specifically says
that it allows the agent to act on behalf of the principal to
change beneficiary designations or to dispose of a specific
parcel of real property, under nobst power-of-attorney statutes
the agent would not be permtted to execute one of these deeds
on behalf of the principal who granted that authority.

2:41: 36 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the bill addresses that on page 4:

If a recorded power-of-attorney or the transfer-on-
death deed expressly grants a designhated agent of the
transfer or the power to revoke a transfer-on-death
deed, the designated agent may revoke the transfer-on-
death deed as provided in this section.

2:42: 55 PM

BRANDON CI NTULA, Al aska Trust Conpany, said he supports HB 60
for all Al askans.

[ Testimony was cut of f due to audi o problens.]
2:44: 33 PM

MARI E DARLIN, Alaska Commission on Aging, said the Al aska
Comm ssion on Aging has supported this legislation fromthe very
begi nni ng. She noted her witten testinony that contains
addi tional information. The bill takes care of a lot of
probl ens, she stated, and the Al aska Commi ssion on Aging fully
supports the bill and has tried to work with those involved.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 24- April 7, 2014



She added that AARP has been involved as well, and this is
sonet hing that has been needed for a long tine.

2:47:06 PM
CHAI R KELLER set HB 60 asi de.

HB 282- LANDLORD AND TENANT ACT

2:47:46 PM

CHAI R KELLER announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 282, "An Act relating to the rights and
obligations of residential landlords and tenants; and relating
to the taking of a permanent fund dividend for rent and danmages
owed to a residential landlord.” [HB 282 was al so heard earlier
in this hearing.]

The conmttee took an at-ease from2:47 p.m to 2:50 p. m
2:50: 18 PM

CHAIR KELLER announced what the conmmittee wll cover on
Wednesday.

2:50:54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOUG | SAACSON, Al aska State Legislature, said he
has provided an anmendnent analysis for version P of HB 282.
the eight anendnents here, he stated, he is asking that the
commttee not nove Anmendnent 1. He noted that Amendnent 2 was
previ ously del eted, and he would |ike Amendnent 3 to be offered.
He said he does not want the commttee to adopt Anmendnment 4 or
5, and he would |ike Amendnents 6 and 7 and Conceptual Anmendnent
8 to be offered. He spoke of what he called Arendnent 3.

2:52: 04 PM

CHAIR KELLER clarified that he was speaking of the anmendnent
| abel ed P.3, which will be Anendnent 1.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER noved to adopt Amendnent 1, [l abeled 28-
LS0930\ P. 3, Bullock, 3/25/14] as follows [original punctuation
provi ded] :

Page 10, line 1:
Delete "or"

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -25- April 7, 2014



| nsert

, by a

Page 10, line 2, followi ng "premses":

Insert ", or the rental agreenent”

2:52:30 PM
CHAI R KELLER obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON said in absence of a |ocal | aw
restricting the nunber of people in a dwelling, the |anguage in
Amendnent 1 allows the landlord to set the nunber of occupants
in the rental agreenent.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if that was not allowed previously.

BRENDA HEW TT, Staff, to Senator Doug |saacson, Alaska State
Legislature, said it is her understanding that |andlords are not
able to make those restrictions.

2:53:33 PM

CHAIR KELLER renoved his objection. There being no further
obj ections, Amendnment 1 was adopt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE PRU TT noved to adopt Anendnent 2, [I|abeled 28-
LS0930\P. 6, Bullock, 4/7/14], as follows [original punctuation
provi ded] :

Page 10, line 10, through page 11, line 5:

Delete all material.

Renunber the followi ng bill sections accordingly.

Page 13, |ine 30:
Del ete "Sections 4 - 16"
I nsert "Sections 4 - 15"
2:54:39 PM

CHAI R KELLER obj ect ed.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 26- April 7, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON said the Uniform Residential Landlord
Tenant Act pending in Congress is "vetting a lot of this issue.
It was suggested that we renpbve this section until those have
been covered on the federal side just for the best clarity.
This subject has a lot of tentacles to it and all the parties

are willing to wait until it's finalized and bring it back as
its owmn bill later.™
2:54.:46 PM

CHAIR KELLER clarified that Anendnent 2 deletes Section 14,
pages 10-11 from HB 282. He renoved his objection. There being
no further objections, Arendnment 2 was adopt ed.

2:54:54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PRUI TT noved Anendnent 3, |abeled 28-LS0930\P. 7,
Bul l ock, 4/7/ 14, as follows [original punctuation provided]:

Page 12, lines 15 - 16:
Delete "in this paragraph, "transient occupancy"

neans the presence or stay of an individual for |ess

t han 30 consecutive days;"

Page 12, line 28, through page 13, line 1
Delete ";

(9) occupancy by an individual who is a

victim of trauma from a sexual assault or donestic

violence and who is receiving housing assistance from

a victimcounseling center; in this paragraph, "victim

counsel i ng center" has t he neani ng gi ven in
AS 18. 66. 250"

CHAI R KELLER obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON said there were issues with transient
occupancy. It will be dealt with separately, he noted. Wth
Amendnent 5 "we're also noting that [paragraph] 9, as noted on
the page, is also no |longer necessary, so we're deleting that
section.”

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -27- April 7, 2014



2:55:57 PM

CHAIR KELLER clarified that Amendnent 5 deletes page 12, Ilines
15 and 16.

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON noted that line 28 on page 12 will also
be del et ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expressed his belief that the cleaner
way of acconplishing that is to strike Section 16 fromthe bill,
"because that is all that 16 does."

2:56:42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PRUI TT wi t hdrew his [notion].

2:57.06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered Conceptual Anendnent 4 to
strike Section 16 on pages 12-13.

2:57:21 PM
REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON asked about the amendnent.
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said it is crystal clear that the

current law will remain: AS 34.03.330(b) is totally unchanged,
the regul ar text remains, and none of the new | anguage goes in.

2:58: 23 PM
CHAI R KELLER clarified that Conceptual Anmendnment 4 del etes page
12, line 3, through page 13, line 1, which is the entirety of
Section 16.

REPRESENTATI VE PRU TT said this approach is cleaner.
There bei ng no objection, Conceptual Amendnment 4 was adopt ed.
2:59:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON sai d his next anmendnent retains the word
“uniform on page 1, line 6; page 4, line 28; and page 13, line
3, "so it Dbasically deletes several sections that we were
originally renoving the word 'uniformi, now it has been advised
that we retain it for purposes of benefit to the residents of
the state.”

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 28- April 7, 2014



2:59:55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said he asked Representative |saacson
to leave the title unchanged in AS 34.03. 330 because unless the
conmmi ssioners on uniform state law say the state is no |onger

uniform "we should be uniform it's a great benefit." The
decisions from other states have persuasive and precedential
val ue, he said. Additionally, the conm ssioners will be able to

| ook at the final product, because it is unknown what m ght be
done on the floor and by the Senate, and it is premature to do
t hat now, he expl ai ned.

CHAIR KELLER said Representative Guenberg is talking about
Conceptual Anmendnent 5. He asked himto make his notion.

3:01: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to delete Section 17 of HB 282
and retain the term "Uniform Residential Landlord and Tenant

Act," or anything |ike that where ever it appears. "So the |aw
woul d remai n unchanged, but we basically take out Section 17 and
conform the rest of the bill so that we still refer to the

uni form act. "
3:01: 53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON said he believes what is really being
offered is removing "uniform in Sections 1, 2, and 3. By j ust
deleting Sections 1, 2, 3, and 17, that would be acconplished,
he sai d.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG agreed and noved to delete Section 1,
pages 1-3; Section 2, pages 3-4; Section 3, page 4; and Section
17, page 13 from HB 282.

CHAI R KELLER obj ected. That is Amendnment 5, and it is to delete
Sections 1-3 and Section 17 from the bill. He renoved his
objection and there being no further objections, Conceptual
Amendrent 5 was adopt ed.

3:04: 34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that sonebody handed out sone
definitions [of terns contained in HB 282].

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -29- April 7, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON said the bill still has the pet deposit;
the definition of normal wear and tear; the requirenment that
| andl ords maintain a separate accounting of security funds; the
confirmati on of prenise condition; the allowance of dry cabins;
the allowance of landlords to restrict the nunber of persons in
a dwelling; the allowance for l|andlords to evict tenants for
illegal activities; and the allowance for landlords to attach
the Al aska Permanent Fund dividend for unpaid rent or damages.
Therefore, he said, HB 282 still "does extensive work that wll
help both the tenant and the |andlord have safe and affordable
housi ng. "

3:05: 58 PM

CHAI R KELLER said he will get a CS to the commttee as soon as
it is available. He set HB 282 aside.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he thinks it is a good bill.
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said he is ready to buy incone property or
to [becone a renter] once this bill passes.

3:06: 58 PM

ADJ OURNNMENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Judi ciary Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 3:06 P. M

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 30- April 7, 2014



